Media Report 04 Feb 2022

This weeks media reports will cover and answer great questions veterans are still asking such as Frequently asked questions regarding COVID-19 in Ottawa. Due to ongoing and evolving COVID-19 pandemic callers may experience increased wait times when calling the Government of Canada Pension Center. Callers may also experience dropped calls, as all telecommunication networks across Canada are presently facing capacity challenges. and local Media Articles and An illness or injury can have an impact on your ability to adjust to life after service. We all need healthcare services. The Treatment benefits program provides coverage for a variety of benefits and services to help you get—and stay healthy. Have you made an application for disability benefits from Veterans Affairs Canada and received a decision? If you disagree with that decision, you have the right to review or appel

Canada

Total Percentage of population vaccinated	Total Percentage of population fully vaccinated	Percentage	Eligible (5+) Percentage of population fully vaccinated	
83.52%	78.88%	87.85%	82.98%	
+0.03%	+0.06%	+0.03%	+0.06%	
Total doses	Hiret dae	Second doses	l Third+ doses	Received doses administered
77,832,559	31,934,70	03 30,161,7	94 15,736,062	84.07%
+112,206	+10,511	+21,620	+80,075	+0.12%

NATO NEWS AND THOUGHTS [From SHELLDRAKE] 4 February 2022

The Russian Mystery

(source George Friedman 24 January 2022) @geopoliticalfutures.com

In looking at Russian strategy in Ukraine, and indirectly toward the United States, there is a mystery that seems to have an obvious answer but that is difficult to simply accept.

Moscow started with a relatively slow deployment of forces along the Ukrainian border. It appeared to be in a position to invade Ukraine with minimal opposition. Rather than attack, though, Russia engaged in a diplomatic confrontation with the United States, demanding that

Ukraine never be admitted into NATO, and that NATO limit its deployment of weapons in Eastern Europe.

Russian negotiators knew full well that the U.S. would never agree to these terms. For one thing, it's a decision for NATO, not Washington. For another, NATO members in the region are at the easternmost frontier of the alliance. They are the most exposed to potential Russian actions, particularly if Russia takes control of Ukraine. In short, capitulating to Russian demands would leave Eastern Europe open to Russian attacks. Most important to Washington, though, is that its credibility would be mortally wounded, not just in Europe but around the world. Allowing the Russians to force the United States to agree on future relations with a sovereign state was simply a nonstarter. The consequences would be global, and not for nothing, it would create a political crisis in the United States the administration could not manage. It doesn't make sense for Russia to delay military operations while making demands it knew were going to be rejected, especially since its military was already deployed. Why would Russia, if fully committed to entering and occupying Ukraine, give the West time to prepare military countermeasures? Moscow understands that its actions would be seen as a threat because that is how they were meant to be seen. It understands there would be a response, but it also understands it can't be certain what the response would be. Air and naval forces and anti-tank weaponry, for example, could dramatically complicate the invasion.

An invasion of Ukraine is difficult in the best conditions. The country is roughly the size of Afghanistan (Manitoba) with a population larger than Canada (41.4 million), and coordinating a complex armored operation presents untold opportunities for failure. The Russian army has not carried out an armored operation since World War II, so the troops are inexperienced. Minimizing the possibility of an anti-Russian buildup would increase the risk to the operation. In an operation of this magnitude, the attack should be made as early as possible. By waiting, Russia increased the risk of failure.

It's possible, then, that Moscow wanted to float an impossible proposal for propaganda purposes. But the value of world public opinion compared to a successful military operation is minimal. After an invasion, public opinion would be against Russian aggression regardless of diplomatic niceties. The value of public opinion, in other words, only takes you so far.

The only conclusion to be drawn is that Russia has no intention of invading Ukraine, as Deputy Foreign Minister Sergei Ryabkov has repeatedly said. Given that Russia failed to act when it could and arguably should have, it seems to me that he might have been telling the truth. On the other hand, we have seen the Russians be active, albeit more subtly, in Belarus, the Caucasus and Central Asia. Logic dictates that Russia must rebuild its historic buffer zone and that Ukraine is essential in this regard. Moscow has done everything in its power to create an atmosphere of crisis. Perhaps it had intelligence that the U.S. and NATO would fold their cards. But the U.S. can't afford to do nothing. President Joe Biden's threat to the Russian banking system is either far more devastating than I can fathom or simply a cover for military action. So in this sense, the U.S. is being coy as well, just not nearly as confusingly as the Russians.

My best guess is the Russians have set up negotiation with the most extreme demands as a normal negotiating strategy. But the fact remains that Russian forces are deployed, and resistance is being strengthened. It may be that the Russians are simply confident that their force is still able to win. But a rule of war is that you strike at maximum advantage, and give away no advantage. The rule

of diplomacy is to make a lot of threats before making a deal. Right now, it's one or the other.

Thanks Randy

NVOC Members concerned with current Protests in Ottawa

Despite the Ottawa Police briefly raising the possibility of a military intervention to clear a stubborn holdout of Freedom Convoy truckers blockading their downtown, the Canadian Armed Forces have been quick to say they will be doing no such thing. A spokesperson for the Minister of Defence told the Wall Street Journal on Thursday, "The Canadian Armed Forces are not involved in law enforcement in this situation, and there are no plans for such CAF involvement."

Prime Minister Justin Trudeau also said Thursday that a military response is "not in the cards right now." "One has to be very, very cautious before deploying military forces in situations engaging Canadians," he said.

There have only been two prior incidents in modern times of the Canadian military being called in to quell civil unrest. The first, the 1970 October Crisis, actually worked great at stamping out Quebec separatist terrorism. But the sight of armed soldiers detaining even peaceful Quebec nationalists en masse has always been a mark on the legacy of then-Prime Minister Pierre Trudeau. The second, the 1990 Oka Crisis, had a much more checkered legacy. The military did eventually compel a Mohawk-led protest to stand down their blockade of a disputed golf course expansion, but the whole thing was so messy it's mostly become a template for what not to do. The experience of Oka is arguably a key reason why Canadian law enforcement is hesitant to bring the hammer down on blockades of any kind – even when they completely seize the country's rail lines for days on end.

Anyways, all this military talk started only because Ottawa Police chief Peter Sloly said Wednesday "there may not be a policing solution to this demonstration" and that "we're looking at every single option, including military aid to civil power."

Thanks Randy

Cardiorespiratory Impairment

Contents

- Introduction
- Rating Tables and Charts
- Evaluating Functional Loss
- Pulmonary Function
- Exercise Tolerance and Use of METs
- Cardiac Failure
- Loss of Function Exercise Tolerance Symptomatic Activity Level (METS)
- Loss of Function Physiological Measurements
- · Loss of Function Cardiac Failure
- Other Impairment Ischemic Heart Disease
- Other Impairment Valvular Heart Disease

- Other Impairment Miscellaneous Cardiac Conditions
- Other Impairment Lower Respiratory Tract
- Other Impairment Obstructive Sleep Apnea
- Charts and Tables
 - <u>Chart 1</u> Guide for Use of Table 12.1 (Loss of Function Exercise Tolerance Symptomatic Activity Level METs) and/or Table 12.2 (Loss of Function Physiological Measurements)
 - <u>Chart 2</u> Cardiorespiratory Impairment Activity Levels (With Energy Expenditure in METs)
 - <u>Chart 3</u> Differentiation of Impairment from Obstructive Versus Restrictive Lung Disease
 - <u>Table 12.1</u> Differentiation of Impairment from Obstructive Versus Restrictive Lung Disease
 - Table 12.2 Loss of Function Physiological Measurements
 - Table 12.3 Loss of Function Cardiac Failure
 - Table 12.4 Other Impairment Ischemic Heart Disease
 - <u>Table 12.5</u> Other Impairment Valvular Heart Disease
 - Table 12.6 Other Impairment Miscellaneous Cardiac Conditions
 - Table 12.7 Other Impairment Lower Respiratory Tract
 - Table 12.8 Other Impairment Obstructive Sleep Apnea
- Steps to Determine the Cardiorespiratory Impairment Assessment

Introduction

This chapter provides criteria for assessing permanent impairment from entitled cardiorespiratory conditions that affect the heart, lungs, and tracheobronchial tree.

Both loss of cardiac function and respiratory function may be manifested by similar clinical symptoms such as shortness of breath and/or decrease in exercise tolerance. Therefore, only one cardiorespiratory impairment assessment will be obtained for any condition or combination of conditions affecting the heart and/or lungs.

There are two exceptions as indicated below:

•A rating for impairment from tuberculosis conditions of the lungs may be applicable from Chapter 24, Tuberculosis Impairment and/or this chapter. The ratings are compared and the highest selected.

If pulmonary tuberculosis and another restrictive lung disease are both entitled, the conditions are bracketed for assessment purposes.

If pulmonary tuberculosis and other cardiorespiratory condition(s) (other than restrictive lung disease) are entitled, pulmonary tuberculosis is assessed separately. In these cases, there would be a tuberculosis impairment rating from Chapter 24, Tuberculosis Impairment and a cardiorespiratory impairment rating from Chapter 12 Cardiorespiratory Impairment.

•Impairment from obstructive sleep apnea is rated from <u>Table 12.8</u> and is not rated from other tables within this chapter.

If obstructive sleep apnea and other cardiorespiratory conditions are entitled, obstructive sleep apnea is rated separately. In these cases, there would be an obstructive sleep apnea impairment rating and a cardiorespiratory impairment rating.

Impairment from hypertension and vascular conditions such as varicose veins, peripheral vascular arterial disease, etc. are rated within Chapter 13, Hypertension and Vascular Impairment.

No rating for entitled cardiac or respiratory conditions is to be taken from tables within Chapter 17, Musculoskeletal Impairment.

Impairment from malignant cardiorespiratory conditions is rated within <u>Chapter 18</u>, Malignant Impairment. Follow the steps contained within the Malignant Impairment chapter.

Rating Tables and Charts

This chapter contains three "Loss of Function" tables and five "Other Impairment" tables which may be used to rate entitled cardiorespiratory conditions. Three charts are also included to assist in evaluating information for impairment purposes.

The tables and charts within this chapter are:

Rating Tables and Charts

Table	Loss of Function	Other Impairment
<u>Table</u> 12.1	Loss of Function - Exercise tolerance - Symptomatic Activity Level - METs	This table is used to rate impairment where there is effort/exercise intolerance.
<u>Table</u> 12.2	Loss of Function - Physiological Measurements	This table is used to rate impairment where there is pulmonary dysfunction.
<u>Table</u> 12.3	Loss of Function - Cardiac Failure	This table is used to rate impairment where there is cardiac failure.
<u>Table</u> 12.4	Other Impairment - Ischemic Heart Disease	This table is used to rate impairment where ischemic heart disease is present.
<u>Table</u> 12.5	Other Impairment - Valvular Heart Disease	This table is used to rate impairment where valvular heart disease is present.
<u>Table</u> 12.6	Other Impairment - Miscellaneous Cardiorespiratory	This table is used to rate impairment where miscellaneous cardiorespiratory conditions of the heart are present.
<u>Table</u> 12.7	Other Impairment - Lower Respiratory Tract	This table is used to rate impairment where lower respiratory tract disease is present.
<u>Table</u> 12.8	Other Impairment - Obstructive Sleep Apnea	This table is used to rate impairment where obstructive sleep apnea is present.
Chart 1	Guide for use of <u>Table 12.1</u> (Loss of Function - Exercise Tolerance- Symptomatic Activity - METs) and/or <u>Table 12.2</u> (Loss of Function - Physiological Measurements)	This chart is used to determine when to use Exercise Tolerance (METs) and/or Pulmonary Function to determine the rating of impairment.
<u>Chart</u>	Cardiorespiratory Impairment: Activity Levels	This chart is used to determine the

2 (with energy expenditure in METs)

Chart Differentiation of impairment fromObstructive versus Restrictive Lung Disease

energy level that gives rise to cardiorespiratory symptoms. This chart is used to identify the presence of Obstructive and/or Restrictive Lung Disease.

Evaluating Functional Loss

Evaluating impairment of the cardiorespiratory system depends primarily on two evaluation tools - pulmonary function testing and exercise tolerance.

<u>Chart 1</u> provides a guide as to when exercise tolerance and/or pulmonary function measurements should be used to rate impairment.

Pulmonary function testing is readily available and performed in most standard respiratory laboratories

Exercise tolerance may be evaluated in a laboratory setting (exercise testing) or may be based on detailed clinical information obtained from the Member/Veteran/Client's history. In the majority of cases, no formal exercise testing is required.

Pulmonary Function

Pulmonary function tests provide one means of measuring respiratory function. These tests evaluate airflow and lung volumes as well as diffusion capacity of carbon monoxide. These values are compared to predicted values.

Blood gas values such as partial pressure of oxygen (PO₂) and oxygen saturation may also be useful in the determination of impairment from some lung conditions. Impairment may sometimes be underestimated on the basis of pulmonary function tests alone, and the evaluation of blood gases provides a further measure of impairment.

A level of impairment can also be determined if continuous oxygen therapy is required. Refer to Table 12.2

The following pulmonary function values will be used to determine the type and/or extent of pulmonary impairment: FVC; FEV1; FEV1/FVC; and Dco (Dlco).

FVC (forced vital capacity) is the total volume of air that can be exhaled with maximal force. For VAC purposes, this measurement is used to determine impairment from restrictive lung conditions.

FEV1 (forced expiratory volume in one second) is the volume of air that is exhaled with maximum effort in the first second after a full breath. FEV1 usually accounts for about 75% of FVC. For VAC purposes, this measurement is used to determine impairment from obstructive lung disease.

FEV1/FVC ratio is a comparison between the amount of air exhaled in the first second, compared to the total amount of air exhaled in one breath. For VAC purposes, this measurement is used to differentiate impairment from obstructive versus restrictive lung disease.

Dco (DLco) represents the diffusion capacity of carbon monoxide. This measurement provides information on the efficiency of gas transport across the alveolar-capillary membranes. This is most useful in determining impairment from restrictive lung disease due

to parenchymal fibrosis. However, for VAC purposes, this measurement is used to determine impairment from both restrictive and obstructive lung disease. In some cases, the pulmonary function values are the result of both entitled and non-entitled lung conditions. Chart_3 indicates the relationship between lung volume and flow rate for restrictive versus obstructive lung disease, and will assist in determining the types of lung disease present. This knowledge is necessary in applying the criteria within Table 12.2

Exercise Tolerance and Use of METs

Exercise tolerance may be used as a measure of impairment for conditions affecting the heart and lungs. The ability to exercise requires energy. Energy production depends on the provision of oxygen to body cells which involves both the heart and the lungs.

The use of METs, or metabolic units, provides a method of evaluating an individual's ability to exercise. One MET unit represents the baseline amount of oxygen used by the body at rest. (More specifically, one MET unit is 3.5 cc of oxygen per kilogram of body weight per second.)

<u>Chart 2</u> (METs) groups various activities according to the amount of energy expended; that is, activities using 1-2 METs require smaller amounts of energy than those requiring 3-4 METs.

METs values can be obtained from a detailed Member/Veteran/Client medical history that provides information related to physical activity. This information should assist in the evaluation of the "symptomatic activity level" or the type of activity/activities that produce symptoms such as dyspnea, fatigue, dizziness, and/or chest pain. The rating is assigned based on the level at which activities within one MET category consistently give rise to symptoms.

When METs values are used, the activities to be considered should be performed in a sustained manner so that there is more than a short, sporadic expenditure of energy, and thus, a more accurate evaluation of the effects of exercise.

Responses of the type "I cannot do such and such" or "I do not do so and so" are not useful in assessing the symptomatic activity level. What must be established is the level of exercise which consistently results in cardiorespiratory symptoms.

In some cases it may not be possible to use exercise tolerance to evaluate cardiorespiratory conditions. This may occur when disease conditions exist that prevent walking or exercising, when the Member/Veteran/Client is frail, or when the Member/Veteran/Client has cognitive impairments that interfere with history taking.

Some cardiorespiratory conditions cannot be accurately rated using exercise tolerance. These include conditions that do not decrease exercise tolerance, conditions that do not produce symptoms, and some conditions which are intermittent.

Cardiac Failure

The degree of cardiac failure, as determined by investigative findings, provides an additional measure of cardiac function. X-ray and/or echocardiography are used to evaluate the extent of cardiac failure. Echocardiography provides a more exact measurement of left ventricular function (ejection fraction), measuring the amount of blood that can be pumped or ejected by the left ventricle in one heart beat. The normal ejection fraction is greater than 60%. When cardiac failure is present, the ejection fraction is reduced.

Loss of Function - Exercise Tolerance - Symptomatic Activity Level - (METS)

<u>Table 12.1</u> is used to rate impairment of the cardiorespiratory system based on exercise tolerance. Only one rating may be selected irrespective of the number of cardiac and/or pulmonary diseases present.

If non-entitled conditions or conditions rated within another chapter/table of the Table of Disabilities are contributing to the overall impairment, then the Partially Contributing Table (PCT) must be applied to arrive at the rating which is due to the entitled condition(s) rated within this chapter.

Loss of Function - Physiological Measurements

<u>Table 12.2</u> is used to rate impairment of the cardiorespiratory system based on pulmonary function tests (PFT). Only one rating may be selected. If more than one rating is applicable, the ratings are compared and the highest selected.

When evaluating pulmonary function test results, the percentage of predicted postbronchodilator lung values should be used.

If non-entitled conditions or conditions rated within another chapter/table of the Table of Disabilities are contributing to the overall impairment, then the Partially Contributing Table (PCT) must be applied to arrive at the rating which is due to the entitled condition(s) rated within this chapter.

Loss of Function - Cardiac Failure

<u>Table 12.3</u> is used to rate impairment from cardiac failure. Only one rating may be selected. If more than one rating is applicable, the ratings are compared and the highest selected.

<u>Table 12.3</u> is of particular importance in assessing a Member/Veteran/Client who is unable to be rated using exercise tolerance because of other significant conditions such as hemiplegia.

When entitled cardiac failure conditions result in permanent impairment of other organ systems, a consequential entitlement decision is required. If awarded, the resulting impairment of that organ system(s) will be rated using the applicable body system specific table(s).

If non-entitled conditions or conditions rated within another chapter/table of the Table of Disabilities are contributing to the overall impairment, then the Partially Contributing Table (PCT) must be applied to arrive at the rating which is due to the entitled condition(s) rated within this chapter.

Other Impairment - Ischemic Heart Disease

<u>Table 12.4</u> is used to rate impairment from ischemic heart disease. Only one rating may be selected. If more than one rating is applicable, the ratings are compared and the highest selected.

When entitled ischemic heart conditions result in permanent impairment of other organ systems, a consequential entitlement decision is required. If awarded, the resulting impairment of that organ system(s) will be rated using the applicable body system specific table(s).

If non-entitled conditions or conditions rated within another chapter/table of the Table of Disabilities are contributing to the overall impairment, then the Partially Contributing Table (PCT) must be applied to arrive at the rating which is due to the entitled condition(s) rated within this chapter.

Other Impairment - Valvular Heart Disease

<u>Table 12.5</u> is used to rate impairment from valvular heart disease. Only one rating may be selected. If more than one rating is applicable, the ratings are compared and the highest selected.

When entitled valvular heart conditions result in permanent impairment of other organ systems, a consequential entitlement decision is required. If awarded, the resulting impairment of that organ system(s) will be rated using the applicable body system specific table(s).

If non-entitled conditions or conditions rated within another chapter/table of the Table of Disabilities are contributing to the overall impairment, then the Partially Contributing Table (PCT) must be applied to arrive at the rating which is due to the entitled condition(s) rated within this chapter.

Other Impairment - Miscellaneous Cardiac Conditions

<u>Table 12.6</u> is used to rate impairment from miscellaneous cardiac conditions. Only one rating may be selected. If more than one rating is applicable, the ratings are compared and the highest selected.

When entitled miscellaneous cardiac conditions result in permanent impairment of other organ systems, a consequential entitlement decision is required. If awarded, the resulting impairment of that organ system(s) will be rated using the applicable body system specific table(s).

If non-entitled conditions or conditions rated within another chapter/table of the Table of Disabilities are contributing to the overall impairment, then the Partially Contributing Table (PCT) must be applied to arrive at the rating which is due to the entitled condition(s) rated within this chapter.

Other Impairment - Lower Respiratory Tract

<u>Table 12.7</u> is used to rate impairment from lower respiratory tract conditions. Only one rating may be selected. If more than one rating is applicable, the ratings are compared and the highest selected.

When entitled lower respiratory tract conditions result in permanent impairment of other organ systems, a consequential entitlement decision is required. If awarded, the resulting impairment of that organ system(s) will be rated using the applicable body system specific table(s).

If non-entitled conditions or conditions rated within another chapter/table of the Table of Disabilities are contributing to the overall impairment, then the Partially Contributing Table (PCT) must be applied to arrive at the rating which is due to the entitled condition(s) rated within this chapter.

Other Impairment - Obstructive Sleep Apnea

<u>Table 12.8</u> is used to rate impairment from obstructive sleep apnea. Only one rating may be selected. If more than one rating is applicable, the ratings are compared and the highest selected.

When entitled obstructive sleep apnea conditions result in permanent impairment of other organ systems, a consequential entitlement decision is required. If awarded, the resulting impairment of that organ system(s) will be rated using the applicable body system specific table(s).

If non-entitled conditions or conditions rated within another chapter/table of the Table of Disabilities are contributing to the overall impairment, then the Partially Contributing Table (PCT) must be applied to arrive at the rating which is due to the entitled condition(s) rated within this chapter.

Chart 1 - Guide for Use of Table 12.1(Loss of Function - Exercise Tolerance - Symptomatic Activity Level - METs) and/or 12.2 (Loss of Function - Physiological Measurements)

Cardiac and respiratory conditions may exist alone or together. When they both exist, regardless of whether the conditions are entitled or non-entitled, it is important to know which criteria should be used for the determination of the extent of cardiorespiratory impairment. The following guidelines apply:

- •If cardiac condition(s) exist without respiratory condition(s), cardiorespiratory impairment is measured using METs and <u>Table 12.1</u>;
- •If respiratory condition(s) exist without cardiac condition(s), the rating is the average of that obtained from METs (<u>Table 12.1</u>) and Pulmonary Function (<u>Table 12.2</u>);
- •If both cardiac and respiratory conditions co-exist, the ratings are compared and the highest is taken from METs (<u>Table 12.1</u>) and Pulmonary Function (<u>Table 12.2</u>);
- •If it is not possible to rate cardiorespiratory impairment using <u>Table 12.1</u> or <u>12.2</u>, ratings can be established using <u>Table 12.3</u> (Cardiac Failure), <u>Table 12.4</u> (Ischemic Heart Disease), <u>Table 12.5</u> (Valvular Heart Disease), <u>Table 12.6</u> (Miscellaneous Cardiorespiratory), <u>Table 12.7</u> (Lower Respiratory Tract) or <u>Table 12.8</u> (Obstructive Sleep Apnea).

No Dosnivatory

Chart 1 - Guide for Use of Table 12.1 (Loss of Function - Exercise Tolerance - Symptomatic Activity Level - METs) and/or 12.2 (Loss of Function - Physiological Measurements)

FI = Functional Impairment.

Guide for Use of Table 12.1 and/or 12.2

		Respiratory Dise	Disease Present	
		Pulmonary function studies available	Pulmonary function studies not available	
Cardiac Disease	METs data available	FI = highest rate of METs and pulmonary function studies	FI = METs	FI = METs
Present	METs data not available	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	No FI from this Table	No FI from this Table

No Cardiac Disease	METs data available	FI = average of METs and pulmonary function studies	FI = METs
Present	METs data not available	FI = pulmonary function studies	No FI from this Table

Chart 2 - Cardiorespiratory Impairment - Activity Levels (With Energy Expenditure in METs)

Chart 2 - Cardiorespiratory Impairment - Activity Levels (With Energy Expenditure in METs)

Symptomatic Activity Level

1 - 2 METs

Energy Expended

Energy expended at rest or minimal activity

- Lying down
- · Sitting and knitting
- Using sewing machine (electric)
- Sitting down
- · Sitting and talking on telephone
- Travelling in car as passenger
- Standing
- · Sitting and drinking coffee
- · Playing cards
- Strolling (slowly)
- Light sweeping
- Clerical work (desk work only)

2 - 3 METs Energy expended in performing light household duties

- Light household duties
- · Washing dishes
- Walking slowly (3.5 km/h)
- Walking less than 1 block (200m) at normal pace
- Climbing less than 1 flight of stairs at normal pace
- Playing piano, violin or organ
- Typing
- Cooking or preparing meals
- Playing billiards
- Clerical work including filing
- · Setting table
- Driving power boat
- Playing golf (with power buggy)
- Bench assembly work (seated)
- Dressing, showering
- Horseback riding at walk
- Using self-propelled mower or ride-on mower
- Light tidying, dusting
- Lawn bowling
- Polishing silver

Driving car

Energy expended in walking at an average pace

- Walking at average pace (5 km/h)
- Walking 1 2 blocks (100 200 m) at normal pace
- Climbing 1 flight of stairs at normal pace
- Golf (pulling buggy)
- · Machine assembly
- Cleaning car (excludes vigorous polishing)
- Minor car repairs
- Tidying house
- Shifting chairs
- Light gardening (weeding and watering)
- Light welding
- Cleaning windows, waxing floors
- Table tennis
- Vacuuming
- Cycling (10 km/h)
- Making beds
- Hanging out washing
- Pushing light power mower
- · Driving heavy truck
- Stocking shelves

Moderate activity: encompasses more strenuous daily activities with the exclusion of manual labour and vigorous exercise

- Walking more than 2 blocks (400 m) at normal pace
- Climbing more than 1 flight of stairs at normal pace
- Mopping floors
- Golf (carrying bag)
- Light carpentry (e.g. chiseling, hammering)
- Scrubbing floors
- Ballroom dancing
- Beating carpets
- Polishing furniture
- Wallpapering
- Carrying groceries (10 kg)
- Gentle swimming
- Tennis doubles (social)
- Stocking shelves with light objects
- Painting outside of house
- Hoeing (soft soil)
- Stacking firewood
- Carrying trays, dishes

5 - 6 METs Heavy exercise: manual labour or vigorous sports

- Walking slowly but steadily up stairs
- Carpentry (e.g. using hand tools)

3 - 4 METs

4 - 5 METs

- Pushing a full wheelbarrow (20 kg)
- Walking 6.5 km/h (sustained brisk walk discomfort in talking at the same time)
- Swimming laps
- Digging in garden
- · Shovelling dirt
- · Using hand saw
- Lifting and carrying (20 kg)
- · Sexual intercourse without stopping
 - Badminton (competitive)
 - Tennis (singles, non-competitive)
- 6 7 METs Using a pick and shovel to dig trenches
 - · Water skiing
 - Loading truck with bricks

Very heavy exercise or labour

- Carrying heavy objects (30 kg)
- Horseback riding (galloping)
 - Jogging (8 km/h)
 - Sawing wood with hand tools
 - Running (9 km/h)
 - Chopping hardwood
- 8 9 METs Squash (non competitive)

7 - 8 METs

10+ METs

- Skiing (cross country)
- Calisthenics

Arduous work

- Carrying loads (10 kg) up a gradient
- Cycling quickly (25 km/h)
 - Running quickly (10 km/h)
 - Football

The activities listed under each heading are examples. Other activities that have the same METs expenditure can be used for reference if their METs level is recognized in medical or scientific literature.

Chart 3 - Differentiation of Impairment from Obstructive Versus Restrictive Lung Disease

Certain pulmonary function values or combination of values help differentiate between restrictive and obstructive lung disease and the effect that each or both are having on pulmonary function (will assist when applying the PCT).

Chart 3 - Differentiation of Impairment from Obstructive Versus Restrictive Lung Disease

Interpretation	FVC%	FEV1%	FEV1/FVC%
Normal	\geq 85%	\geq 85%	\geq 75%
Airway Obstruction	Normal or Low	Low	Low
Lung Restriction	Low	Normal or Low	Normal or Low

Low

Table 12.1 - Loss of Function - Exercise Tolerance. Symptomatic Activity Level - METs

Only one rating may be given from Table 12.1. The rating is determined by using the METs value obtained from Chart 2.

Table 12.1 - Loss of Function - Exercise Tolerance. Symptomatic Activity Level - METs

Rating	Symptomatic Activity Level (METs)
Nil	> 8
Four	7 - 8
Nine	6 - 7
Eighteen	5 - 6
Twenty-six	4 - 5
Thirty-four	3 - 4
Forty-three	2 - 3
Seventy-one	1 - 2

Table 12.2 - Loss of Function - Physiological Measurements

Only one rating may be given from Table 12.2. If more than one rating is applicable, the ratings are compared and the highest selected.

The FVC measurement is used to rate impairment from restrictive lung disease.

The FEV1 measurement is used to rate impairment from obstructive lung disease.

Dco (DLco) is used to rate impairment from both restrictive and obstructive lung disease.

Table 12.2 - Loss of Function - Physiological Measurements

Rating	% FVC	% FEV1	Dco DLCO	PO2 O2 Sat*
Nil	> 85%	> 85%	> 85%	
Nine	80-84%	80-84%	80-84%	
Eighteen	75-79%	70-79%	70-79%	
Twenty-five	70-74%	60-69%	60-69%	
Thirty-five	60-69%	50-59%	50-59%	
Forty-five	50-59%	40-49%	40-49%	
Fifty-five	40-49%	30-39%	30-39%	
Sixty-one	30-39%	20-29%	20-29%	
Seventy-one	< 30%	< 20%	< 20%	PO ₂ < 55 O ₂ Sat < 88% or continuous oxygen therapy

^{*} O₂ Saturation Value above is measured at room air and at rest.

Table 12.3 - Loss of Function - Cardiac Failure

Only one rating may be given from Table 12.3. If more than one rating is applicable, the ratings are compared and the highest selected.

Each bullet (•) represents one criterion. In order for a rating to be established for Table 12.3, only one criterion must be met at a level of impairment for that rating to be selected.

Table 12.3 - Loss of Function - Cardiac Failure

Rating	Criteria
Nil	 No clinical signs or symptoms of cardiac failure; or Ejection fraction > 60%.
Nine	Evidence of right ventricular failure; orEjection fraction of 51-60%.
Eighteen	 Signs and symptoms of mild to moderate left or biventricular failure persisting despite optimal therapy; or Ejection fraction of 40-50%.
Thirty-one	 Persistent, severe clinical signs and symptoms of left or biventricular heart failure despite optimal therapy; or Ejection fraction < 40%.

Table 12.4 - Other Impairment - Ischemic Heart Disease

Only one rating may be given from Table 12.4. If more than one rating is applicable, the ratings are compared and the highest rating is selected.

Each bullet (•) represents one criterion. In order for a rating to be established for Table 12.4, only one criterion must be met at a level of impairment for that rating to be selected.

Table 12.4 - Other Impairment - Ischemic Heart Disease

Rating	Criteria
Nil	 No evidence of symptoms (e.g.dyspnea, fatigue, chest pain, dizziness, syncope); or Non specific electrocardiogram changes.
	 Coronary artery disease, with a history of myocardial infarction; no
Nine	 Coronary artery disease, with a history of myocardiar infarction, no evidence of cardiac failure and infrequent or no angina; or Coronary artery disease, with successful coronary artery surgery; infrequent or no angina; or Coronary artery disease as demonstrated on angiogram.
Eighteen	 Coronary artery disease with ongoing angina.
Thirty-four	 Coronary artery disease characterized by a history of myocardial infarction followed by frequent angina and/or further myocardial infarctions; or Coronary artery disease, with coronary artery surgery, followed by frequent angina and/or further myocardial infarctions.
Seventy-one	 Coronary artery disease with angina at rest the majority of the time (day and night) despite optimal therapy.

Table 12.5 - Other Impairment - Valvular Heart Disease

Only one rating may be given from Table 12.5. If more than one rating is applicable, the ratings are compared and the highest rating is selected.

Each bullet (•) represents one criterion. In order for a rating to be established for Table 12.5, only one criterion must be met at a level of impairment for that rating to be selected.

Table 12.5 - Other Impairment - Valvular Heart Disease

Rating	Criteria
Nil	 Mitral valve prolapse with minimal or no symptoms; or Aortic sclerosis with minimal or no symptoms.
Two	 Valvular heart disease (other than mitral valve prolapse or aortic sclerosis) with no symptoms; or Valvular heart disease with use of intermittent antibiotic therapy for surgical/dental procedures.
Four	 Valvular heart disease with valve replacement surgery, with no subsequent symptoms and no requirement for anticoagulant drug therapy.
Nine	 Valvular heart disease with valve replacement, with no subsequent symptoms, but requirement for ongoing anticoagulant drug therapy.

Table 12.6 - Other Impairment - Miscellaneous Cardiac Conditions

Only one rating may be given from Table 12.6. If more than one rating is applicable, the ratings are compared and the highest rating is selected.

Each bullet (•) represents one criterion. In order for a rating to be established for Table 12.6, only one criterion must be met at a level of impairment for that rating to be selected.

Table 12.6 - Other Impairment - Miscellaneous Cardiac Conditions

Rating	Criteria
Nil	Flow murmurs.
Two	 Chronic asymptomatic arrhythmia, e.g. atrial fibrillation, atrial or ventricular ectopic beats.
Four	 Cardiac arrhythmia controlled by optimal therapy.
Nine	 Cardiac arrhythmia with intermittent symptoms despite optimal therapy; or Cardiac arrhythmia requiring ongoing anticoagulant therapy.
Eighteen	 Cardiac arrhythmia with ongoing symptoms despite optimal therapy.

Table 12.7 - Other Impairment - Lower Respiratory Tract

Only one rating may be given from Table 12.7. If more than one rating is applicable, the ratings are compared and the highest rating is selected.

Each bullet (•) represents one criterion. In order for a rating to be established for Table 12.7, follow the "ands" and "ors".

Table 12.7 - Other Impairment - Lower Respiratory Tract

Table 12.7	- Other Impairment - Lower Respiratory Tract
Rating	Criteria
Nil	Asymptomatic pleural plaques.
One	 Recurrent lower respiratory infections (at least 6 or more per year); or Intermittent use of inhaled bronchodilator medication
Two	 Daily use of one inhaled medication (glucocorticosteroid, bronchodilator, nonsteroidal anti-inflammatory agent) or daily use of an oral leukotriene

receptor antagonist or bronchodilator; or

- Chronic cough, with production of sputum in the morning only.
- Daily use of inhaled glucocorticosteroid and/or nonsteroidal inhaled antiinflammatory agent and/or oral leukotriene receptor antagonist and intermittent use of inhaled bronchodilator. Inhaled anticholinergic medication may also be used.
 - · Daily use of inhaled glucocorticosteroid and/or nonsteroidal inhaled antiinflammatory agent and/or oral leukotriene receptor antagonist and inhaled bronchodilator. Inhaled anticholinergic medication may also be used; and
 - Intermittent use of systemic glucocorticosteroids once a year or less or daily use of an oral bronchodilator; or
- · Chronic cough productive of sputum throughout the day.
 - · Daily use of inhaled glucocorticosteroid and/or nonsteroidal inhaled antiinflammatory agent and/or oral leukotriene receptor antagonist and inhaled bronchodilator. Inhaled anticholinergic medication may also be used: and
- Intermittent use of systemic glucocorticosteroids more than once a year.

Eighteen Permanent systemic glucocorticosteroid use.

Table 12.8 - Other Impairment - Obstructive Sleep Apnea

Only one rating may be selected from Table 12.8. If more than one rating is applicable, the ratings are compared and the highest selected.

Each bullet (•) represents one criterion. In order for a rating to be established for Table 12.8, only one criterion must be met at a level of impairment for that rating to be selected.

Table 12.8 - Other Impairment - Obstructive Sleep Apnea

Rating	Criteria
Nil	 Documented obstructive sleep apnea but asymptomatic.
One	Nightly use of dental appliance.
Four	 Minimal clinical symptoms (daytime fatigue/sleepiness, irritability) with minimal interference despite optimal therapy; or Nightly use of CPAP (Continuous Positive Airway Pressure) machine.
Nine	 Moderate daytime somnolence/fatigue; falls asleep several times a day with regular interference in some daytime activities despite treatment.
Thirteen	 Excessive daytime somnolence; memory lapses and difficulty with concentration; interference with the majority to all daytime activities despite treatment.

Steps to Determine the Cardiorespiratory Impairment Assessment

If non-entitled conditions are contributing to the impairment then the Partially Contributing Table (PCT) must be applied to the applicable Table rating(s).

Refer to Chart 1 (Guide for use of Table 12.1 and/or Table 12.2) to select the appropriate Tables for evaluating cardiorespiratory impairment - Table 12.1 (Loss of Function - Exercise

Nine

Four

Thirteen

Tolerance - Symptomatic Activity Level - METS) and/or <u>Table 12.2</u> (Loss of Function - Physiological Measurements).

- •Step 1: Determine the METs level that consistently produces cardiorespiratory symptoms using Chart 2 (Cardiorespiratory Impairment: Activity Levels) and apply Table 12.1 (Loss of Function Exercise Tolerance-Symptomatic Activity Level METs) to arrive at a rating for Exercise Tolerance.
- •Step 2: Does the Partially Contributing Table apply? If yes, then apply to rating at Step 1.
- •Step 3: Determine rating based on Pulmonary Function using <u>Table 12.2</u> (Loss of Function Physiological Measurements), if applicable.
- •Step 4: Does the Partially Contributing Table apply? If yes, then apply to rating at Step 3.
- •Step 5: Determine Cardiorespiratory rating using <u>Table 12.1</u> (Loss of Function Exercise Tolerance-Symptomatic Activity Level METs) rating and/or <u>Table 12.2</u> (Loss of Function Physiological Measurements) rating in accordance with <u>Chart 1</u> (Guide for use of <u>Table 12.1</u> and/or <u>Table 12.2</u>).
- •Step 6: Determine rating from <u>Table 12.3</u> (Loss of Function Cardiac Failure) if applicable.
- •Step 7: Does the Partially Contributing Table apply? If yes, then apply to rating at Step 6.
- •Step 8: Compare ratings from Step 5 and Step 7. Select the highest rating.
- •Step 9: Determine a rating from "Other Impairment" <u>Tables 12.4 12.7</u>, if applicable. If more than one rating is obtained from these tables, the ratings are added.
- •Step 10: Does the Partially Contributing Table apply? If yes, then apply to rating at Step 9.
- •Step 11: Compare the "Loss of Function" rating from Step 7 with the "Other Impairment" rating obtained in Step 10. Select the highest rating.
- •Step 12: Determine the Quality of Life rating.
- •Step 13: Add ratings at Step 11 and Step 12.
- •Step 14: If partial entitlement exists, apply to rating at Step 13.

This is the Disability Assessment for cardiorespiratory conditions.

Obstructive Sleep Apnea

- •Step 15: Determine a rating from <u>Table 12.8</u> (Other Impairment Obstructive Sleep Apnea).
- •Step 16: Does the Partially Contributing Table apply? If yes, apply to the rating at Step 15.
- •Step 17: Determine the Quality of Life rating.
- •Step 18: Add the ratings at Step 16 and Step 17.
- •Step 19: If partial entitlement exists, apply to rating at Step 18.

This is the Disability Assessment for obstructive sleep apnea.

Dear stakeholders,

Many of you have seen, acknowledged and spoken out in relation to the incidents this weekend at the National War Memorial and the Tomb of the Unknown Soldier.

In response to these actions, local authorities have put in place additional security, surveillance and ground protection at the site.

We know how troubling these actions have been for those who have served and are serving. Please reach out with any particular concerns. I would lastly remind you of our <u>VAC Assistance Service</u>, available 24/7 at 1-800-268-7708, for those who may need to speak to a mental health professional.

Paul Ledwell

Deputy Minister, Veterans Affairs Canada

Chers intervenants,

Beaucoup d'entre vous ont vu, noté et dénoncé les incidents de cette fin de semaine au Monument commémoratif de guerre du Canada et à la Tombe du Soldat inconnu. En réaction à ces actes, les autorités locales ont pris des mesures supplémentaires de sécurité, de surveillance et de protection du terrain. Nous savons à quel point ces actes sont perturbants pour les personnes qui ont servi et qui servent dans les forces. N'hésitez pas à communiquer avec nous si vous avez des préoccupations particulières. Enfin, je voudrais vous rappeler l'existence du Service d'aide d'ACC auquel les personnes qui ont besoin de parler à un professionnel de la santé mentale peuvent accéder 24 heures sur 24, au 1-800-268-7708.

Paul Ledwell

Sous-ministre, Anciens Combattants Canada

IN THE NEWS

Canadian Army Reserve training in Whitestone Jan. 28-30

Women are a growing group of Canadian military veterans, but services are lagging Ottawa enquête sur une cyberattaque contre Affaires mondiales Canada

Locals raising funds to help Squamish veteran who lives in his car Ottawa élargit une opération de formation militaire en Ukraine Maj.-Gen. Dany Fortin opts for trial by Quebec judge only in sexual assault case